[bookmark: _GoBack]          Program Committee Meeting
March 26, 2020
Doug Dobmeyer, Committee Chair
[image: image1.jpg]

Table of Contents 
Meeting Agenda…………………….………………………....……......3
January 16th Meeting Minutes  (Attachment A) ………….…...…….4-9
Civil Rights Memo (Attachment B)……… …..…………………...10-12 






[bookmark: _gjdgxs]









Access Living Program Committee
Meeting Agenda
4:00 – 5:30PM, Thursday, March 26, 2020

Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/677445133   Meeting ID: 677 445 133
Phone call: +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)   Meeting ID: 677 445 133


4:00 PM- Call to Order (Chair Dobmeyer)
4:01 PM- Roll Call and Introductions (Chair Dobmeyer)
4:02 PM- Welcome (Chair Dobmeyer)
4:03 PM- Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting (Chair Dobmeyer)
4:05 PM: Independent Living Department (Feidt)
Discussion – For our nursing home transition work, we need to hire outreach workers and so far, our job postings are not generating the type of candidates we need. Do you have thoughts on strategies we should employ to improve our recruitment efforts?
4:30 PM: Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
Disability and Incarceration Initiative update
Legislative Advocacy update
Discussion – What suggestions do you have regarding AL policy or organizing advocacy on COVID-19? What opportunities are you aware of? 
4:55 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden)
Homeless Shelters Update
[bookmark: _gjdgxs2]Discussion – Typically, our Civil Rights Team receives complaints about housing discrimination that are active, and we endeavor to address the discrimination to enable consumers to secure or maintain housing. Occasionally, we receive complaints of past discrimination, where the primary relief sought by a consumer is damages. We tend to resist handling such cases in order to preserve our resources for cases where the discrimination is active. We recently agreed to file a lawsuit in federal court on a case that we got involved in when the housing discrimination was clear and active, but the couple has since moved, so the underlying problem is no longer a live problem,. Hence, the focal purpose of the filing is to win damages for the couple (and teach the housing provider a lesson and perhaps generate media coverage to broaden that lesson). Details of the case will be provided during the meeting, but our team would like the Committee to brainstorm about the efficacy of handling such cases.
5:20PM: Coronavirus Impact on Access Living Programs (Feidt)
5:30 PM-Closing/Adjournment (Chair Dobmeyer)


A.


Program Committee Meeting Minutes
January 16. 2020

On Phone: Doug Dobmeyer, Larry Goodman, Mark Owen, Judith Aiello, Shari Runner, Molly Walsh, Francine Bell
Staff: Amber Smock, Daisy Feidt, Ken Walden, Reba Pope, Jerome Palliser

Start Time: 4:02

Conference Call Number: 1-800-920-7487
Moderator: 43856287#
Conference Call Participation Code: 46239741#

402: PM- Call to Order (Dobmeyer)
4:02 PM- Roll Call and Introductions (Dobmeyer)
4:02 PM – Welcome (Dobmeyer)
4:02 PM- Approval of Minutes from Last Meeting (Dobmeyer) (Attachment A)
Motion to approve minutes (Owen)
Motion seconded (Runner)
Minutes approved unanimously
4:08 PM: Civil Rights Department Updates (Walden) (Attachment B)
Uber case update
Access Living alleges Uber is covered by the ADA and is not providing adequate services for people with power wheelchairs. (Walden)
Recently, the judge ruled that Access Living as an organization does not have the ability to sue for this violation because of the way the statute is written. We think the judge is incorrect, and appealed that bad decision to the seventh circuit court of appeals. The case was heard in December, and we are hoping to get a more positive finding. (Walden)
This case is important because as the economy moves more towards a “shared economy” model, we want to make sure people with disabilities do not get left behind. (Walden)
City of Chicago case – Affordable Rental Housing Program
In 2018 we filed a case with the goal of forcing Chicago to remedy or fix its failure of affordable housing, and making sure affordable housing, if developed, is accessible. (Walden)
The city filed a common response to dismiss, which was denied by district court. Now we are in the discovery portion where both sides trade information.  Access Living is the sole litigant at this point, and the scope covers essentially any housing the city builds with federal money besides public housing.  (Walden)
“The city of Chicago is a partial funder of various nonprofits. Does it include any of that information?” (Dobmeyer)
We didn’t name any specific developers of affordable housing. (Walden)
City of Chicago case – Homeless Shelters
Homeless shelters in Chicago are grossly inaccessible, so we filed a lawsuit in federal court. The goal is to have the city fix the system. Unfortunately, the court did not think our plaintiff legally had the authority or right to make the city fix the entire system. The court found the city system was inaccessible, but that our plaintiff legally lacked the right to make it improve. The case was settled for some money for our client, but we are currently in the process of finding other plaintiffs to force the city into improving. Our co-counsel law firm, Porter Wight, will remain co-counsel on any new case filed. (Walden)
Chicago Public Schools Case
[bookmark: _gjdgxs3]In another case, our child is the client and her school is not accessible. CPS claims that their obligation entails transferring her to another building, while we say they should modify their school under existing law. The case is currently in summary judgement, which means the discovery portion is finished and both sides submit papers asking the court to make its decision outside of trial. We hope to have a decision in summer. (Walden)
Deakin case update
A family aims to improve an empty vacant home in the Old Town neighborhood. Their daughter has a disability and the neighbors are unhappy with the plan, claiming the proposed modifications will compromise the history and nature of the home and the neighborhood. We are handling this in a state court case where the same neighbors appealed a decision of the Chicago Zoning Board of Appeals to allow the accessibility improvements (Walden)
We recently filed an affirmative case in federal court saying the neighbors violated the family’s rights under the Fair Housing Act. We will report more as the case moves along. (Walden)
Discussion – The Chicago Police Department recently announced it is searching for an ADA Compliance Officer to ensure the department’s activities, policies, and procedures comply with the ADA. The position pays $70,000. The Compliance Officer will have no staff. What, if anything, can we do to strengthen the position and ensure its success?
This grew out of consent decree.  The city has historically misperceived mental health behavior as an affront or violence. The new Officer would help train police on how to interact with people with disabilities. (Walden)
Access Living also has other channels through which we are talking to CPD. Some jails have ADA coordinators. If you look at other issue area sectors, the CHA and the CTA have had bad ADA compliance staffers or disability staff of some kind.  If you have to compare it to another position think the CTA liaison to disability and advisory committee. (Smock)
Has the position been advertised? Where is the position housed? Would Access Living be a part of this interview panel? We could provide some good input. (Aiello)
The deadline to apply was January 10th, so that part expired, but Equip for Equality was involved in the creation and formatting of the position. We don’t know where it’s housed, and Amber says it didn’t say where they’d be placed to work. I think they were initially thinking of hiring a police officer, then changed their mind, seeking someone in the “civilian” world. (Walden)
Karen Tamley is leaving MOPD, and I would assume they would want to coordinate heavily with that office, so it seems like a lack of connection now that the two things are happening at once. (Runner)
The person appointed as interim head of MOPD, Laurie Dittman, has been there for a long time. (Feidt)
We have an interim superintendent at CPD, and it might be interesting for Access Living to meet with him to find out his thoughts on the importance of this new ADA Officer position. This way he can have some guidance as he transitions to the new superintendent. (Runner)
Since the job is unlikely to have much support, and it still keeps the person relatively isolated, perhaps we can recommend the position collaborate with the Civil Consulting Alliance, which is working on strategies for violence reduction. Also, maybe a goal of this role could be an annual report focusing on what has been done and what they want accomplished? (Goodman)
I would expect to see some goal statements. What are they intended to achieve? The report could be “I’ve learned X and here’s the plan to attack it.” (Owen)
Maybe this is an issue that goes on the agenda when the new CEO arrives. They could put together a meeting with the mayor. One goal is to ask Lightfoot to make sure this happens, or possibly some sort of advisory committee to the city or police department on ADA issues. Without Karen on board yet, maybe a media campaign would suffice. (Dobmeyer)
They need to get someone as soon as possible, so to one degree this can’t wait for Karen to come on board, but working with Laurie Dittman might be a good way of trying to get across what we’re trying to do. (Smock)
4:39 PM: Advocacy Department Updates (Smock)
Strategic HCBS/Healthcare and Transportation goals update (Attachment C)
We are currently six months into year one of our three year strategic plan. Advocacy staff have been working with the Development team to look for funds to hire a transportation organizer. (Smock)
HCBS has been in a strange position the last six months. Advocates for HCBS experienced a bit of a lull, but the next six months' work will pick up. We need to see what Pritzker will commit to, and build our community base for what we will be facing after the November 2020 election. (Smock)
State/Federal advocacy 2020 (Attachment D)
We are still developing a state legislative plan, and we look forward to more discussions this month. Over the summer we met with over 35 legislators that started groundwork, and we are actively working with INCIL for a legislative breakfast in Springfield in March, which will allow informal discussions about priorities. (Smock)
14(c) Subminimum wage city effort update (Attachment E)
Fair Labor Standards Act of 1937 allows some people with disabilities to be hired at less than minimum wage. Currently, there is a very live effort to phase out 14c through the Transformation to Competitive Employment Act (TCEA). Last summer we were quietly working with labor allies who were fighting for $15/hour. Our labor allies at SEIU asked us what we would like to see included, and we raised the issues of the 14c phaseout having been left out previously. SEIU rose to the challenge and made sire to  braid a phaseout into  the Mayor’s budget package. The Mayor herself supported and the City Council passed the full package at the end of November. The thinking is that if Chicago phases out 14c in the next 4 years, it will push the state to do better, which is where the real work needs to happen. (Smock)
After the ordinance passed, earlier this month, MOPD called together community allies to meet on creating an actual headcount of people to be transitioned to $15/hr. The goal was to identify possibilities for supporting them towards integrated employment. There is definitely work to be done. (Smock)
There is also a religious exemption in the city language, unfortunately, as we would like to see the phaseout apply to all settings.. The original 14c certificate is planned to be phased out, but if we didn’t preemptively include a religious exemption, the religious 14c holders could come forward and stall the package. (Smock)
Discussion – As Access Living looks ahead to spring advocacy at city, county, state, and federal levels in 2020, how can the Board most efficiently help develop our reach/impact with elected officials who represent us? Options could include networking, a specific event, or research/resource support. Bear in mind our strategic plan goals, and overall advocacy goals/positions, as well as staff capacity.
What has been proven to be the most productive way the Board can play in a legislative agenda in the past? (Dobmeyer)
Two things that were very helpful: one was when a board member was ready to broker a meeting and sit with a state representative on the northwest side. Face time from board members who are constituents is always a good thing. (Smock)
The other was when we were asked to take a position on an issue we’ve never taken before, like recently with the Fair Tax proposal. The fact the program committee came together quickly to have a decision-making discussion is a big contribution. (Smock)
Have we had much mobilization on media coverage with a particular issue vis-à-vis legislative process? How much of a role should the Board play to make media work better? (Dobmeyer)
A good relationship with members of the press are always valuable. For example, Access Living has good relationships with the Sun Times, which allows us to elevate issues of importance. If anyone knows a reporter or helps facilitate, that would be welcome. (Smock)
Bridget has been trying to establish a better relationship with somebody at the Chicago Tribune. If someone has a relationship there that you think could be useful we would love that. (Feidt)
I can ask if someone is willing to chat with Access Living. I think her name is Mary Wisnewski. I have an email and I will send it to Amber. (Aiello)
Is meeting with your legislator something you’d be willing to do more of? Also, an ask for the program committee is to talk to  your fellow board member about how important an issue is. It is better coming from board member to board member. (Feidt)
If it so happens you know elected officials outside Chicago, it might be very helpful to Access Living. We always need votes wherever we can get them. The executive director of INCIL is focused on building stronger statewide networks. (Smock)
Whatever we can do to help please let us know. (Walsh)
Please email Amber if you have any ideas outside the meeting. (Smock)
5:05 PM: Independent Living Department (Feidt)
Lobbyist update
Regarding the previous discussions we had on the lobbyist, we heard concerns from board members and talked internally. We were able to work out a deal where INCIL will contract with the lobbyist for general statewide work. We have carved out a smaller piece so the cost will be about half of what it was before. We appreciate the productive pressure to get something to work. (Feidt)
Independent Living Director
For those who do not know, the director of Independent Living left in May 2019 to DRS. This was a good move for Access Living overall. Since then we hired somebody new, but that did not work out. We have decided to put the position on hold for a little bit until we can get our new president and CEO situated. (Feidt)
Colbert grant update
The state has decided to completely change the way they do this work. The overall goal is a good one, but remains complicated. Organizations can apply either as “prime” or “subcontractors” during their request for applications stage. Access Living decided to apply as subcontractors under  other organizations’ prime applications. We found out all three prime applications in which we were subcontractors were funded. We found this out last week, and there is still a lot of information to learn as this is a new process. One good outcome is we always wanted to play an outreach role for people in nursing homes, which we will be able to do under two of the approved subcontracts. (Feidt)
The other good outcome is the pay rate. We have been complaining to the state that we haven’t been paid an adequate rate. We were able to present our  costs in the RFA fairly, which was approved. This is all mostly good news, though I am concerned over the quickness the process is happening and the overall disorganization. (Feidt)
What is the timeline on decision making? (Dobmeyer)
The state wants people to start having people doing this work in the beginning of February, but asked prime and subcontractors to submit two budgets for consideration. There will be two phases: the first is the time between February and end of June, and the rest for the next twelve month period after that.  I think state timelines will shift when they realize how much infrastructure build out  will be required to support the prime applicant proposals.
Compliance review update
The Department of Rehabilitation Services funds a lot of Access Living work. A compliance review takes place every few years, and one is coming up January 28th and 29th. I believe we are in relatively good shape. There is one area I’m concerned about where a former staff person did not correctly close out files, but it was discovered in time and we are working hard to get everything in compliance. Brenna is creating a compliance review book for all the information they need, and Jerome has been working to get consumers on site to talk to. They will also want to talk to staff and board members. If you are interested, I still need nonexecutive committee members at this point. (Feidt)
I’ll let you know if I can make it. (Owen)
5:15PM – Closing/Adjournment (Dobmeyer)


[bookmark: _jlypt7npyg2z]
[bookmark: _o315fvkek53e]
CONFIDENTIAL AND PRIVILEGED:  DO NOT DISTRIBUTEB.


MEMORANDUM

TO:		Program Committee

FROM:	Charles Petrof, Mary Rosenberg, and Ken Walden

RE:	Update on Uber case, City of Chicago case (Affordable Rental Housing Program) case, City of Chicago case (Emergency Shelters), CPS case, and Deakin/Old Town case 

DATE:	March 6, 2020

_____________________________________________________________________________

Uber – Federal Court

NO UPDATES/CHANGES SINCE LAST PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING
On December 9, 2019, the 7th Circuit Court of Appeals heard oral argument on our appeal. We appealed the lower court’s decision denying our Motion (request) for Leave (an opportunity) to Amend our Complaint to address the judge’s previous ruling that Access Living, as an organization, and Rahnee Patrick, as an individual, could not be plaintiffs in the case.

Both sides were given 20 minutes to argue, a substantial amount of time in the 7th Circuit. The three judge panel consisted of Judges Rovner, Easterbrook and Scudder. Questioning was sharp on both sides, but it is probably dangerous to assume too much about the outcome from the questions. We now wait for the panel to issue its written decision.

City of Chicago (Affordable Rental Housing Program) – Federal Court

NO UPDATES/CHANGES SINCE LAST PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING
As reported previously, the parties have moved into the discovery phase of litigation, which is the sharing of information with each side via formal written requests for information and interviews with potential witnesses. 

District Court Judge Dow referred the parties to Magistrate Judge Cole for help resolving discovery disputes. We have been before Judge Cole a handful of times, but we became concerned that he was defining the scope of discovery in a manner inconsistent with Judge Dow’s directives. Accordingly, we filed with Judge Dow a motion to define the scope of discovery to help get everyone on the same page about the scope. The motion will be considered and a hearing set after Judge Dow reviews the papers filed on this issue.   

City of Chicago (Housing Shelters) – Federal Court

As previously reported, we settled our lawsuit that alleged plaintiff Laura Martin was denied access to City of Chicago homeless shelters because the shelters are inaccessible, in violation of Title II of the ADA. The settlement provides monetary damages to Ms. Martin and reserved for later the question of the appropriate amount of attorneys’ fees for plaintiff’s lawyers. Since our last report, led by the law firm Porter Wright, which has worked on this case pro bono, we have been negotiating the amount of attorneys’ fees with the City. If negotiations are not successful, Judge Gettleman will award the amount of fees he believes is appropriate.

UPDATE – NEW FILING
On February 13, because the case on behalf of Ms. Martin settled without an order requiring the City to address the accessibility of its shelters, we – along with our partners at Coalition for the Homeless and the law firm Porter Wright - filed a new lawsuit in federal court on behalf of a new plaintiff, the goal of which is to force the City to make its shelter system accessible. The case is captioned Gloria Carter vs. City of Chicago. 
  
Chicago Public Schools – Federal Court

NO UPDATES/CHANGES SINCE LAST PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING
We represent a CPS primary school student and her mother in their demand for installation of an elevator in the student’s school, which the student needs in order to make the school accessible to her. 

On December 17, 2019, we completed briefing on our motion for summary judgment. Our motion argues that CPS violated the ADA in two separate ways. First, we argue the CPS school selection process discriminates against students with disabilities because only half of the schools available through that process are physically accessible, giving students with disabilities half the choices enjoyed by students without disabilities. Second, we argue CPS should be required to accommodate our client’s disability because installing an elevator at one of its schools would not fundamentally alter CPS’s activities. In furtherance of this second argument, we stress that for a district the size of CPS, the cost of an elevator is dwarfed by its general activities, even in years of great financial hardship.

Also on December 17, 2019, CPS completed briefing its own motion for summary judgment. The CPS motion argues CPS’s offer to transfer our client to a different school that operates in an accessible building is all that is required for compliance with Section 504 or the ADA. CPS further argues that transfer to an accessible building has been ruled to be a sufficient remedy under the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Act (IDEA). 

The Judge in our case will now consider whether the ADA provides different protections than the IDEA in situations like ours. A decision is expected this summer. 

Deakin/Old Town Case – Federal Court and State Court

NO UPDATES/CHANGES SINCE LAST PROGRAM COMMITTEE MEETING
In December, Access Living and the law firm Relman Colfax filed a fair housing complaint on behalf of a family that wants to modify an historic home in the historic neighborhood of Old Town to make it accessible for their 14-year-old daughter who uses a wheelchair. Namely, the family desires to create an accessible entrance, garage, and small living space in the rear of the building, install an elevator from there to upper floors, and make other accessibility improvements. Sadly, the family’s effort is opposed by a group of neighbors who comprise the Old Town Triangle Association (OTTA), who claim the modifications will compromise the historical nature of the neighborhood and home, even though a number of historical preservation organizations have approved the family’s plans for the home. The complaint alleges the OTTA’s actions violate the Fair Housing Act, including the provision that prohibits coercion, intimidation, threats, or interference against someone who exercises his/her housing rights.

You may recall we previously helped this same family win approval for its planned modifications from the Chicago Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA). Unfortunately, the OTTA appealed the ZBA’s decision to the Circuit Court (state court), and that case remains pending in that court. Access Living, as an organization, successfully intervened in the state court case to stress the fair housing implications of the case, and will urge the court to uphold the ZBA’s decision. This case remains pending in state court.

Accordingly, and in summary, we continue to advocate on the family’s behalf in the state court case, but also co-filed and are co-counseling the new case in federal court.


 
2
image1.jpeg




